Provincial Gazette

Free State Province



Provinsiale Koerant

Provinsie Vrystaat

Published by Authority

Uitgegee op Gesag

SPECIAL

NO. 57	FRIDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2014	NO. 57	VRYDAG 12 SEPTEMBER 2014
COOPERATIVE GOVERNAN HUMAN SETTI	CE, TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS AND LEMENTS NOTICES		
Ngwathe Municipality	2		

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE, TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS AND HUMAN SETTLEMENTS NOTICES

NGWATHE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY - CREDIT CONTROL AND DEBT COLLECTION BY-LAW

Reviewed for 2014 - 15

[NO. 145 OF 2010]

NOTICE IN TERMS OF SECTION 14(2)(b)(i) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL SYSTEMS ACT, 2000: PUBLICATION: NGWATHE MUNICIPALITY'S CREDIT CONTROL AND DEBT COLLECTION BY-LAW

- I, Advocate T Mokoena, In my capacity as the Municipal Manager of Ngwathe Municipality and duly authorized by Resolution of the Council of the Municipality on delegation of powers hereby publish standard by-laws for public comment.
- [2.] The public and interested parties are invited to submit comments in writing on these proposed standard draft by-laws by not later than 30 days from the date of publication of this notice, to:-

The Municipal Manager Ngwathe Municipality Liebenbergstrek PO Box 359 Parys 9585

Comments may also be submitted by facsimile to number 056 811 2046 or by e-mail to jordaanr@ngwathe.co.za

SCHEDULE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1: DEFINITIONS AND APPLICATION

- 1. Definitions
- 2. Application of By-laws

CHAPTER 2: SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR THE PROVISION OF MUNICIPAL SERVICES

- 3. Provision of municipal services to consumers
- 4. General terms and conditions for the provision of municipal services
- 5. Estimated consumption
- 6. New service agreements and deposits or security by existing consumers
- 7. Termination of service agreements

CHAPTER 3: ACCOUNT ADMINISTRATION

- 8. Accounts
- 9. Account information
- 10. Account Administration
- 11. Queries or complaints in respect of accounts
- 12. Appeals against decision by service providers on queries and complaints
- 13. Arrear accounts
- 14. Action to secure payment
- 15. Power to terminate or restrict provision of municipal services
- 16. Reinstatement of municipal services
- 17. Interest
- 18. Collection charges
- 19. Full and final settlement of an amount
- 20. Agreements for the payment of arrears in installments
- 21. Dishonoured cheques

CHAPTER 4: INDIGENT CONSUMERS

22. Registration as indigent consumer

CHAPTER 5: MISCELLANEOUS

- 23. Council's right of access to premises
- 24. Preservation of rights consequent on non-compliance
- 25. Transmission of documentation
- 26. Prima facie evidence of documentation
- 27. Repeal and Amendments
- 28. Conflicting laws
- 29. Short title

CHAPTER 1:

DEFINITIONS AND APPLICATION

Definitions

- 1. In these By-laws any word or expression to which a meaning has been assigned in the Act bears the same meaning, and unless the context otherwise indicates –
- "account" means a notification by means of a statement of account to any consumer liable for payment of any amount to the Council in respect of any of the following:
- (a) Electricity consumed based on a meter reading or an estimate of consumption;
- (b) Water consumed based on a meter reading or an estimate of consumption
- (c) Refuse removal and disposal;
- (d) Sewerage
- (e) Rates:
- (f) Interest; and/or
- (g) miscellaneous and sundry fees and collection charges;
- "Act" means the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000); "arrears" includes collection charges and interest in respect of the principal amount in arrears;
- "authorised official" means any official or agent of the Council who has been authorised by it to administer, implement and enforce the provisions of these By-laws;
- "by-law" means a by-law adopted and promulgated by the Council;
- "collection charges" means charges which may be recovered by the Council in terms of section 75A of the Act, and includes -
- (a) the cost of reminding consumers of arrears:
- (b) the cost of the termination, restriction and reinstatement of municipal services;
- (c) the costs of any notice rendered, sent or delivered in terms of these By-laws;
- (d) the costs and administration fees contemplated in section 21 of these By-laws;
- (e) all legal costs, including attorney and client costs, incurred in the recovery of arrears; and
- (f) any commission and/or other expenses relating to the recovery of arrears payable by the Council to any consumer or firm.
- "Council" means (a) the Local Municipality of Ngwathe established in terms of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998, as amended, exercising its legislative and executive authority through its municipal council; or
- (b) its successor in title: or
- (c) a structure or consumer exercising a delegated power or carrying out an instruction, where any power in these By-laws has been delegated or sub-delegated, or an instruction given, as contemplated in section 59 of the Act; or
- (d) a service provider fulfilling a responsibility under these By-laws, assigned to it in terms of section 81(2) of the Act, or any other law, as the case may be:
- "consumer" means any occupier of premises to which the Council has agreed to provide or is actually providing any municipal service, or if there is no occupier, the owner of the premises concerned; "fee" means a fee prescribed for or in respect of any municipal service;
- "Municipal Manager" means (a) the consumer appointed by the Council as the Municipal Manager in terms of section 82 of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998), and includes any consumer acting in that position; or
- (b) in relation to a service provider referred to in paragraph (d) of the definition of "Council", the Accounting Officer of that service provider.
- "municipal service" means any or all of the services specified in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of section 2(1)(b) of this by-law;
- "occupier" means any consumer who occupies any premises or part thereof, without regard to the title under which he or she so occupies;

"owner" -

- (a) in relation to a property referred to in paragraph (a) of the definition of "property", means a consumer in whose name ownership of the property is registered;
- (b) in relation to a right referred to in paragraph (b) of the definition of "property", means a consumer in favour of whom the right is registered;
- (c) in relation to a right referred to in paragraph (c) of the definition of "property", means a consumer in favour of whom the right is registered or to whom it was granted in terms of any law; and (d) in relation to public service infrastructure referred to in paragraph (d) of the definition of "property", means the organ of state which owns or controls that public service infrastructure, and includes a consumer who the Council may for the purpose of these By-laws regard as the owner of a property in the following cases:
- (i) A trustee, in the case of a property in a trust, but excluding state trust land in relation to rates contemplated in the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No.6 of 2004);
- (ii) an executor or administrator, in the case of a property in a deceased estate;
- (iii) a trustee or liquidator, in the case of a property in an insolvent estate or the owner of which is in liquidation;
- (iv) a judicial manager, in the case of a property in the estate of a consumer under judicial management; (v) a curator, in the case of a property in the estate of a consumer under curatorship;
- (vi) a consumer in whose favour a usufruct or other consumeral servitude is registered, in the case of a property that is subject to a usufruct or other consumeral servitude:
- (vii) a lessee, in the case of a property that is registered in the name of the Council and is let by it; or
- (viii) a buyer, in the case of a property that was sold by the Council or private or another owner and of which possession was given to the buyer, in a case of a pending registration of ownership in the name of the buyer;
- "consumer" means either a natural or legal consumer
- "policy" means the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy adopted by the Council;
- "prescribed" means prescribed by the Council from time to time, by resolution;
- "premises" means any piece of land, with or without any building or structure thereon, the external surface boundaries of which are delineated on
- (a) a general plan or diagram registered in terms of the Land Survey Act, 1927 (Act No. 9 of 1927), or in terms of the Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No. 47 of 1937); or
- (b) a sectional plan registered in terms of the Sectional Titles Act, 1986 (Act No. 95 of 1986), which is situated within the area of jurisdiction of the Council:
- "property" means (a) immovable property registered in the name of a consumer, including, in the case of a sectional title scheme, a sectional title unit registered in the name of a consumer;
- (b) any right registered against immovable property in favour of a consumer, excluding a mortgage bond registered against the property:
- (c) a land tenure right registered in favour of a consumer or granted to a consumer in terms of any law; or
- (d) public service infrastructure:
- "rates" means municipal rates on property levied in terms of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004), and "working day" means a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday.

Application of By-laws

- 2. (1) These By-laws only apply in respect of amounts of money due and payable to the Council for:-
- (a) rates;
- (b) fees and/or surcharges on fees in respect of the following municipal services:
- (i) The provision of water and/or the availability of the provision thereof;
- (ii) refuse removal and disposal:
- (iii) The provision of sewerage and the availability of the provision thereof; and
- (iv) The provision of electricity supply and/or the availability of the provision thereof;
- (c) interest which has or will accrue in respect of any amount of money due and payable or which will become due and payable to the Council in regard to rates and municipal services; and
- (d) collection charges;

(2) These By-laws also apply to any municipal service provided through pre-paid meters, in so far as the By-laws may be relevant.

CHAPTER 2

SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR THE PROVISION OF MUNICIPAL SERVICES

Provision of municipal services to consumers

- 3. (1) No municipal service may be provided to any consumer, unless and until -
- (a) application for the service has been made in writing on a form prescribed by Council or substantially similar to such form;
- (b) any information and documentation required by the Council have been furnished;
- (c) a service agreement, in the form prescribed by Council, has been entered into between the consumer and the Council; and
- (d) an amount equal to the amount prescribed, in cash or a bank guarantee cheque or bank guaranteed cheque, has been deposited as security or other acceptable security, as prescribed, has been furnished.
- (2) If a consumer for a municipal service is an existing consumer of the Council in respect of any other municipal service in respect of which any amount is in arrears –
- (i) such arrears must be paid; or
- (ii) an agreement for payment of the arrears in terms of section 20 must have been entered into and payment in terms thereof must not be in arrears, before an application for a new service in terms of this section will be considered.
- (iii) When the municipality conducts any business activity with any person, should verify if their municipal accounts are settled and up to date.
- (iv) If the tenants account is in arrears, after the final account has been issued, the owner is still responsible for the incurred arrears and no new account will be opened until such that the account is settled up to date.
- (3) The Council may at any time require a consumer to increase a deposit paid or security furnished in terms of subsection (1)(d); the owners of the properties be exempted to pay the consumer deposit, only tenants to pay the consumer deposit.
- (4) No interest is payable by Council on any amount deposited in terms of subsection (1)(d) or (3).

General terms and conditions governing the provision of municipal services

4. The general terms and conditions for the provision of any municipal service set out in a service agreement contemplated in section 3(1)(c) are deemed to be incorporated in these By-laws and apply to the provision of such service to any consumer.

Estimated consumption

- 5. The Council may make an estimate of the consumption of water or electricity consumed by a consumer during any relevant period if –
- (a) no meter reading could be obtained in respect of the period concerned; or
- (b) no meter has been installed to measure the consumption on the premises concerned,
- and the consumer concerned is liable for payment of the prescribed fee in respect of such estimated consumption.
- (c) It is the duty of the consumer to ensure that all meters are accessible and kept clean and free of anything that may obstruct or hinder council's officials from taking readings from it all the times.

New service agreements and deposits or security by existing consumers

- 6. (1) Any existing consumer, or the trustee, liquidator, judicial manager or curator of such consumer's estate, may be required by the Council, whenever it may deem it fit to enter into a new service agreement to replace an existing agreement entered into with the consumer concerned, and to pay a deposit or furnish security contemplated in section 3, notwithstanding the fact that a service agreement was previously entered into in respect of the municipal service concerned and the provisions of section 3(3) apply in respect of such new agreement.
- (2) The provisions of section 3(4) apply to a deposit referred to in subsection (1).

Termination of service agreements

- 7. (1) Subject to the provisions of sections 13 and 20 -
- (a) a consumer may terminate an agreement for the provision of any municipal service by giving notice in writing of his or her intension to do so of not less than seven working days to the Council.
- (b) the Council may, subject to compliance with the provisions of these By-laws and any other applicable law, by notice in writing of not less than 14 working days, to a consumer, terminate his or her agreement for the provision of the municipal service concerned, if the consumer –

- (i) has not used the municipal service during the preceding six months and has not made arrangements to the satisfaction of the Council for the continuation of the agreement;
- (ii) has failed to pay any prescribed fee or arrears due and payable in respect of the municipal service concerned;
- (iii) has made an arrangement with another services provider to provide the municipal service concerned to the consumer;
- (iv) has vacated the premises to which the agreement concerned relates.
- (2) A consumer to whom notice has been given in terms of subsection (1)(b), may within the period of 14 working days referred to in that subsection, make written representations to the Council why the agreement concerned should not be terminated and if such representations are unsuccessful, either wholly or in part, the agreement concerned may be terminated.

CHAPTER 3

ACCOUNT ADMINISTRATION

Accounts

- 8. (1) Accounts must be rendered and administered in accordance with the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy, other prescribed requirements and any other applicable law.
- (2) The Council may, in accordance with the provisions of section 102 of the Act –
- (a) consolidate any separate accounts of a consumer liable for payment in terms of these By-laws to the Council into one consolidated account;
- (b) credit any payment by such consumer against any portion of the consolidated account of that consumer; and
- (c) it will be compulsory that in future all conventional meters be converted to pre-paid meters
- (d) implement any of the debt collection and credit control measures provided for in these By-laws in relation to any arrears on any of the accounts of a consumer.
- (3) The amount due and payable by a consumer by virtue of a consolidated account constitutes a consolidated debt, and any payment made by a consumer of an amount less than the total amount due, will, subject to the provisions of section 19(1), be allocated in reduction of the consolidated debt in the order prescribed.
- (4) (a) Any amount paid by a consumer in excess of an existing debt may be held in credit for the consumer in anticipation of future rates and fees for municipal services or for the purposes contemplated in section 14(b).
- (b) No interest is payable on any amount contemplated in paragraph (a).

Account information

- 9. Accounts must contain at least the following information -
- (a) the consumption or estimated consumption of water and electricity as determined for the measuring or consumption period:
- (b) the measuring or consumption period for water and electricity consumed;
- (c) the amount due based on the measured or estimated consumption of services during the relevant period:
- (d) the amount due and payable for any other municipal service;
- (e) the amount in arrears, if any;
- (f) the interest payable on any arrears, if any;
- (g) collection charges insofar as they may be relevant;
- (h) the final date for payment; and
- (i) the methods, places and approved agents where payment may be made.

Account administration

- 10. The Council must, subject to the provisions of section 5, endeavour to ensure –
- (a) accurate metering of consumption at fixed intervals with the minimum delay between service connection and first and subsequent rendering of accounts;
- (b) accurate and up-to-date information in accounts;
- (c) accurate monthly accounts with the application of the appropriate and correct prescribed fees, rates and other related amounts due and payable;
- (d) the timely dispatch of accounts;
- (e) adequate provision and the efficient operation of facilities for payment throughout the municipal area;
- (f) the appointment of agents to accept payments on behalf of the Council; and
- (g) appropriate hours of business in order to facilitate account payments.

Queries or complaints in respect of accounts

- 11. (1) A consumer may lodge a query or complaint in respect of the accuracy of any amount due and payable in terms of an account rendered to him or her in terms of these By-laws.
- (2) A query or complaint must be lodged with the Council before or on the due date for payment specified in the account concerned, or as soon as reasonably possible thereafter.
- (3) If a guery or complaint contemplated in subsection (1), is lodged –
- (a) before the due date for payment specified in the account concerned, an amount at least equal to the average amount that was due and payable in respect of rates or the municipal service concerned, as specified in the accounts for the preceding three months which are not in dispute, must be paid by the consumer concerned before or on such due date; or
- (b) after the due date for payment specified in the account concerned, such query or complaint must if the full amount in dispute has not been paid, be accompanied by at least the amount contemplated in paragraph (a); and
- (c) before or after the due date for payment specified in the account concerned, the consumer concerned must pay the full amount of any account, insofar as it relates to rates or the municipal service concerned, rendered in respect of a subsequent period, before or on the due date for payment specified in such account, except insofar as that account may incorporate the amount in dispute.
- (4) An authorised official must register the query or complaint and provide the consumer with a reference number.
- (5) The Council must -
- (a) investigate or cause the query or complaint to be investigated within 14 days, or as soon as possible after the query or complaint was received; and
- (b) inform the consumer, in writing, of its decision as soon as possible after conclusion of the investigation, instructing that any amount found to be due and payable must, subject to the provisions of section 19, be paid within 21 days from the date on which a notice thereof is dispatched to the consumer.
- (6) A consumer may, subject to the provisions of section 12, lodge an appeal with the Municipal Manager in terms of section 62 of the Act against a decision referred to in subsection (5), within 21 days of the date of dispatch of the notification of the decision.
- (7) The Council must inform the consumer concerned in writing of the outcome of the appeal, instructing that any amount found to be due and payable, must be paid within seven days from the date on which the consumer is notified thereof from the date of dispatched.

Appeals against decision by service providers on queries and complaints

- 12. (1) If a decision contemplated in section 11(5) has been made in respect of a municipal service provided by a service provider referred to in paragraph (d) of the definition of Council in section 1, a consumer may lodge an appeal against that decision by giving written notice of the appeal with reasons to the Chief Executive Officer of the service provider concerned, within 21 days of the date of the dispatched notification of the decision.
- (2) The Chief Executive Officer must promptly submit the appeal to the appropriate appeal authority specified in subsection (4).
- (3) The appeal authority must consider the appeal, and confirm, vary or revoke the decision, but no such variation or revocation may detract from any rights that may have accrued as a result of the decision.
- (4) If an appeal is against a decision taken by -
- (a) a staff member, other than the Accounting Officer, the Accounting Officer is the appeal authority;
- (b) the Accounting Officer or any committee of the service provider –
- (i) the board of directors of the service provider; or
- (ii) a committee of directors who were not involved in the decision concerned and appointed by the board of directors for this purpose, is the appeal authority.
- (5) An appeal authority contemplated in subsection (4), must commence with an appeal within 42 days after submission of the appeal and decide the appeal within a reasonable period.
- (6) A service provider must comply with the provisions of section 11(7).

Arrear accounts

- 13. (1) If a consumer fails to pay any amount due and payable for any municipal service or rates on or before the due date for payment specified in the account concerned, a final demand notice may be sent to the consumer.
- (2) A final demand notice referred to in subsection (1), must contain the following:
- (a) the amount in arrears and any interest payable, and a statement that payment must be made within 14 days of the date of dispatch of the final demand notice:
- (b) that the consumer may in terms of section 21, within the period contemplated in paragraph (a), conclude a written agreement with the Council for payment of the arrears in installments;
- (c) that if such arrears are not paid or no such agreement is entered into within the period stipulated in paragraph (b), the municipal service concerned may be terminated or restricted and that legal action may be instituted for the recovery of any amount in arrear without further notice;

- (d) that the consumer's name may be made public, and may be listed with a credit bureau;
- (e) that the account may be handed over to a debt collector or attorney for collection;
- (f) that proof of registration as an indigent consumer in terms of section 22 and any other documentation required by the Council must be furnished to the Council on or before the date for payment contemplated in paragraph (a);
- (g) that an indigent consumer referred to in paragraph (f) is only entitled to benefits relating to municipal services as stipulated in the Council's policy relating to the supply of municipal services to indigent consumers; and
- (h) that the consumer has an opportunity to make representations in writing on any matter referred to in a final demand notice within the period of 14 days contemplated in paragraph (a).

Action to secure payment

- 14. The Council may, in addition to the normal civil legal steps to secure payment of any arrears, take the following action to secure payment of such amount:
- (a) The termination or restriction of the provision of any municipal service in terms of section 15; and
- (b) the allocation of the whole or a portion of a payment of an account, or the whole or a portion of a pre-payment for future accounts as contemplated in section 8(4)(a), as payment for arrear municipal service fees or rates, in terms of section 19.
- (c) All accounts more than 60 days on arrears, a 50% of the prepaid amount will be allocated to pay for other services when consumers buy electricity to reduce arrears on a continuously basis despite the arrangements being made. This is to reduce the risk of collection on a consumer account
- (d) A reconnection fee equal to the approved tariff must be charged before reconnection on conventional and or/ prepaid meters.

Power to terminate or restrict provision of municipal services

- 15. (1) For the purposes of subsection (2), a final demand notice means a notice contemplated in sections 11(5)(b), 11(7), 12(6) and 13(1).
- (2) Subject to the provisions of subsection (4), the Council may terminate or restrict the provision of water or electricity, or both, whichever service is relevant, in terms of the termination and restriction procedures prescribed or contained in any law, to any premises if the consumer in respect of the municipal service concerned –
- (a) fails to make full payment of arrears specified in a final demand notice sent to the consumer concerned, before or on the date for payment contemplated in sections 11(5)(b), 11(7), 12(6) or 13(1), whichever is applicable, and no circumstances have arisen which require the Council to send a further final demand notice to that consumer in terms of any of those sections, and the consumer –
- (i) fails to enter into an agreement in terms of section 20, in respect of the arrears concerned before termination or restriction of the service concerned; or
- (ii) fails to submit written proof of registration as an indigent consumer in terms of section 22, before such termination or restriction;
- (b) fails to pay any installment payable in terms of an agreement referred to in paragraph (a)(i) before or on the due date;
- (c) fails to comply with any condition or provision in respect of the supply of electricity or water, as the case may be, imposed by the Council;
- (d) obstructs the efficient provision of electricity or water to another consumer;
- (e) provides electricity or water to a consumer who is not entitled thereto or permits such provision to continue;
- (f) causes a situation relating to electricity or water which, in the opinion of the Council, is dangerous or constitutes a contravention of any applicable law, including the common law;
- (g) in any way reinstates the provision of a previously terminated or restricted electricity or water service;
- (h) is placed under provisional sequestration, provisional liquidation or judicial management, or commits an act of insolvency in terms of the Insolvency Act, 1936 (Act No. 24 of 1936) or is subject to an administration order granted in terms of section 74 of the Magistrates Court Act, 1944 (Act No. 32 of 1944), and fails to enter into a new service agreement within 14 days of the Council requiring such service agreement in terms of section 6.
- (3) The Council may send a termination notice or a restriction notice to a consumer informing him or her –
- (a) that the provision of the municipal service concerned will be, or has been terminated or restricted on the date specified in such notice; and
- (b) of the steps which can be taken to have the municipal service concerned reinstated.
- (4) Any action taken in terms of subsections (2) and (3) is subject to compliance with: -
- (a) sections 3 and 4 of the Water Services Act, 1997 (Act No. 108 of 1997), if the provision of water is involved;
- (b) the relevant provisions of the Electricity Regulation Act, 2006 (Act No. 4 of 2006), if the provision of electricity is involved;
- (c) the relevant provisions of the Health Act, 1977, (Act No. 63 of 1977), and any regulations made in terms of that Act; and
- (d) the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 (Act No. 3 of 2000), in so far as it is applicable.

Reinstatement of municipal services

- 16. (1) The Council must reinstate full levels of provision of any electricity or water service terminated or restricted in terms of section 15 after –
- (a) and the full amount of arrears has been paid and will be switch on within 24 hours; or
- (b) an agreement for payment of the arrears contemplated in paragraph (a) has been entered into in terms of section 21; or
- (c) the full amount of arrears in respect of any agreement entered into in terms of section 20, and any increased deposit, have been paid, or any additional security required has been provided,
- and any other condition of the Policy that the Council may consider appropriate, has been complied with.
- (2) Any reinstatement in terms of subsection (1) may only be done after an authorised official has issued a written certificate of authorisation to the effect that every applicable condition contemplated in subsection (1) has been complied with and that the municipal service concerned may be reinstated.

Interest

17. All arrears in respect of accounts for rates and municipal services bear interest at a rate prescribed.

Collection charges and other costs

18. All attorney and client costs, including collection charges and other cost may be levied against a consumer in respect of any action taken in terms of, or for the purposes of, these By-laws.

Full and final settlement of an amount

- 19. (1) The Council may appropriate monies received in respect of any debt contemplated in these By-laws at its sole discretion.
- (2) If any amount due and payable to the Council in terms of these By-laws has not been paid in full, any lesser amount tendered to and accepted by any employee of the Council, does not constitute payment in full and final settlement of the outstanding amount, unless the lesser amount is accepted in full and final settlement in writing, under a power delegated or sub-delegated to such employee in terms of section 59 of the Act or by a service provider contemplated in paragraph (d) of the definition of "Council".

Agreements for the payment of arrears in installments

- 20. (1) A consumer with positive proof of identity or a consumer authorized, in writing, by such consumer, may, subject to the approval of the Council, enter into an agreement in the form prescribed, for the payment of any arrears in installments.
- (2) The amount due and payable by a consumer in terms of an agreement contemplated in subsection (a), constitutes a consolidated debt and any payment made by a consumer of an amount less than the total amount due, must be allocated in reduction of the consolidated debt, unless the consumer otherwise instructs in writing.
- (b) A sequence order of payment shall be allocated as follows:
 - i. Interest
 - ii. Attorney and client costs
 - iii. Other collection charges
 - iv. Rates and taxes
 - v. Sanitation
 - vi. Refuse
 - vii. Water
 - viii. Electricity

The above allocation is the prescribed order in which all payments will be allocated.

- (3) A consumer may be required to arrange a debit order for the payment of arrears in respect of which an agreement, contemplated in subsection (1), has been entered into.
- (4) Subject to the provisions of subsection (5), no agreement for the payment of arrears may allow for a period of payment of longer than 24 months.
- (5) (a) The Council may allow a period of payment in excess of 24 months for the payment of arrears, but not exceeding a period of 60 months, if special circumstances which the consumer could not reasonably have prevented or avoided, prevail and which, in the opinion of the Council, warrants a longer period of payment.

- (b) Documentary proof of any special circumstances as contemplated in paragraph (a), must be furnished by a consumer on request by the Council.
- (6) The Council must, in exercising its discretion in terms of subsection (5), have regard to a consumer's -
- (a) credit record:
- (b) electricity and water consumption;
- (c) ability to afford the proposed installments, taking into account the consumer's financial situation;
- (d) level of service:
- (e) previous breaches of agreements for the payment of arrears in installments; and
- (f) any other relevant factor.
- (7) A copy of an agreement contemplated in subsection (1), must, on request, be furnished to the consumer concerned.
- (8) If a consumer fails to comply with an agreement contemplated in subsection (1), the total arrears, and payment of a higher deposit if required by the Council, will immediately become due and payable, and additional security, if so required, must be provided, without further notice.
- (9) If a consumer fails to comply with an agreement contemplated in subsection (1), entered into after receipt of a termination or restriction notice for water or electricity services, or both, as the case may be, the municipal service concerned may be terminated or restricted without further notice, in addition to any other action taken, or which may be taken, against the consumer concerned.
- (10) No consumer is permitted to enter into an agreement contemplated in subsection (1), if that consumer has failed to honour a previous agreement for the payment of arrears in installments, unless the Council otherwise decides.
- (11) Once an agreement contemplated in subsection (1), has been concluded, the amount in arrears will continue to bear interest until such time it is paid up to date.

Councillors and Staff arrears

Staff Accounts

Staff arrears will be dealt with in accordance with schedule 2 of the Local Government Systems Act, which stipulate it clearly that a staff member of the municipality may not be in arrears to the municipality for rates and services charges for a period longer than 3 (three) months, and the municipality may deduct any outstanding amounts from a staff member's salary after this period.

2. Councillors accounts

With regard to the schedule 1(one), item 12a of the Systems Act, a municipal councillor may not be more than 3 (three) months in arrears for municipal services, property rates or any other municipal taxes, levies and duties levied by the municipality. Notwithstanding any other procedure, method or action that may be taken in terms of this policy, the municipality will deduct any outstanding amount that particular councilors 3 (three) months period.

Dishonoured Cheques or Electronic Payment

21. If any payment is made to the Council by way of cheque or electronic transfer and such payment is dishonoured, the Council may levy costs and administration fees against the account of the defaulting consumer in terms of the Council tariffs list as determined from time to time by the municipality.

CHAPTER 4 INDIGENT CONSUMERS

Registration as Indigent Consumer

- 22. (1) A consumer who wishes to receive assistance in terms of the Council's policy for the provision of municipal services to indigent consumers, must make application for registration as an indigent consumer on the prescribed form at any of the Council's offices.
- (2) An application in terms of subsection (1), must be considered by the Council which must adhere to the principles of transparency, equity, consistency, non-discrimination, accessibility, empathy, integrity, confidentiality and objectivity during the evaluation process.
- (3) An consumer, contemplated in subsection (1), must, at the request of the Council, furnish any further information to enable the Council to arrive at a decision and the Council may, for the purpose of properly evaluating the application, conduct any investigation which it considers appropriate.
- (4) An consumer must be informed that he or she will automatically be disqualified from receiving any assistance contemplated in subsection (1), and be liable to-
- (a) refund the amount of any such assistance received from the Council, if the application or information contemplated in subsection (3), contains any false information; and

- (b) prosecution if any false information as contemplated in paragraph (a) is furnished by the consumer.
- (5) If the Council finds a consumer to be indigent, such consumer is entitled to assistance in terms of the policy referred to in subsection (1), and his or her consumer particulars must be recorded in a prescribed register of indigent consumers.
- (6) The position of every indigent consumer so recorded, must be reviewed annually by an authorised official in accordance with the directives of the Council.
- (7) A successful consumer must be informed in writing that he or she must immediately notify the Council when his or her indigent status has changed.

CHAPTER 5 MISCELLANEOUS

Council's right of access to premises

23. The Council may exercise its right of access to premises in terms of section 101 of the Act through the Accounting Officer or any authorised official or any duly appointed agent of the Council, authorised thereto in writing.

Preservation of rights consequent on non-compliance

24. The failure by the Council to render an account in terms of section 8(1), to send a final demand notice contemplated in section 15(1) or to comply with any other provision of these By-laws does not in any way affect the liability of any consumer to pay any amount due and payable to the Council as contemplated in these By-laws, nor the Council's right to recover such amount.

Transmission of documentation

- 25. Subject to the provisions of any law, if in terms of or for the purposes of these By-laws any written communication must or may be rendered, sent or delivered –
- (a) by the Council to any consumer, such communication must be -
- (i) delivered by hand to any of the Municipality's Administrative offices -
- (aa) to that consumer's domicilium citandi et executandi, as stipulated in an agreement entered into in terms of section 3(1)(c) or 6(1) or 20(1); or
- (bb) in the absence of such agreement, to that consumer's most recently recorded address; or
- (cc) to the premises concerned in respect of which rates are levied or any municipal service is provided, whichever is relevant; or
- (ii) sent by a registered post to the address referred to in subparagraph (i)(aa) or (bb), whichever is applicable, or to the address of the premises contemplated in subparagraph (i)(cc).
- (b) by any consumer to the Council, such communication must be -
- (i) delivered by hand to any of the Municipality's Administrative offices or to -
- (aa) the Council's domicilium citandi et executandi, Prima facie as stipulated in the agreement contemplated in paragraph (a)(i)(aa); or
- (bb) another address, if the Council has in writing furnished such an address to the consumer concerned; or
- (ii) sent by registered post to the address referred to in subparagraph (i)(aa) or, in the circumstances contemplated in subparagraph (i)(bb), to the address contemplated in that subparagraph.

Prima facie evidence of documentation

- 26. For the purposes of the recovery of any amount due and payable to the Council in terms of these By-laws -
- (a) a copy of any relevant account; and
- (b) an extract from the Council's records relating to the quantity of consumption or provision of any municipal service and the period of provision of such service, certified by an authorised official as being correct, constitute prima facie evidence of the information contained in such documents.

Repeal and amendments

27. Any by-laws relating to credit control and debt collection adopted by the Council or any municipality now comprising an administrative unit of the Council is repealed from the date of promulgation of these by-laws

Conflicting laws

28. If there is any conflict between a provision in these By-laws and a provision of any other by-law of the Council, the provisions of these By-laws prevail.

Short title

- 29. These By-laws are called the Credit Control and Debt Collection By-laws, 2014
- 29(a). Adopted by Ngwathe Local Municipality Council under item 1 on the 30 May 2014

NGWATHE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTICE OF 2014/2015 DETERMINATION OF CHARGES PAYABLE TO THE NGWATHE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY FOR PROPERTY RATES

Ngwathe Local Municipality hereby gives notice in terms of the provisions of section 75A(1) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000), as amended, read with section 2 of the Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act 6 of 2004) and the Property Rates Policy of the Ngwathe Local Municipality approved by Council, that a resolution was passed by Council on **30 May 2014** that the charges payable to the Municipality for Property Rates for the 2014-15 financial year will be as set out below.

The property rates tariffs summarised for the financial year 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 are as follows:

CATEGORY	Rate c in R	Exemptions, Reductions & Rebates
Residential	0,0105	A total rebate of R25 000 will be granted on the value of the property (R15 000 impermissible according to the Municipal Property Rates Act plus a further R10 000 according to the municipality's Property Rates Policy) A further10% reduction on the market value (Market value minus R25 000 then 10% will apply on the difference)
Business, Commercial and Industrial	0,0197	A maximum of 10% reduction in line with the Rates Policy will be given upon submission and approval of the application.
Agricultural	0,0105 100% Phase in	25% of the market value on agriculture property will be exempted
State-Owned	0,0263	
Public Service Infrastructure	0,0105	30% of the market value on public service infrastructure property will be exempted

EXEMPTIONS, REDUCTIONS AND REBATES:

Exemptions, Reduction and Rebates will be given to the different categories of properties and owners as follows: **Different categories of properties**

Residential properties

All residential properties with a market value of less than the amount as annually determined by the municipality are exempted from paying rates. For the 2014/2015 financial year the maximum reduction is determined as R25 000. The impermissible rates of R15 000 contemplated in terms of section 17(1) (h) of the Property Rates Act is included in the amount referred to above as annually determined by the municipality. The remaining R10 000 is an important part of the council's indigent policy and is aimed primarily at alleviating poverty.

Indigent owners

Owners who qualify and who are registered as indigents in terms of the adopted indigent policy of the municipality, regardless of the value of the property, will receive reduction from payment of property tax in terms of the Property Rates Policy.

Child headed families

Families headed by children with monthly income not exceeding R2 700 will receive a 100% rebate for paying property tax.

Retired and Disabled Persons Rate Rebate

Retired and Disabled Persons, not registered as indigents, qualify for special rebates according to monthly household income as follows;

R0 to R2 700 per month
 As per indigent Subsidy Policy

R2 701 to R3 505 per month
 R3 506 to R5 580 per month
 40% rebate
 15% rebate

Business, commercial and industrial properties

The municipality will grant rebates to rateable enterprises that promote local, social and economic development in its area of jurisdiction. Maximum rebate for the 2014-15 financial year, has been determined at **5**%.

Public Benefit Organizations (PBO's)

Taking into account the effects of rates on PBOs performing a specific public benefit activity and if registered in terms of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (No 58 of 1962) for tax reduction because of those activities, Public Benefit Organizations may apply for the exemption of property rates.

Agricultural property rebate

The municipality will apply the standard ratio for agricultural properties as promulgated by the Minister 1:0.25 (75% rebate on the tariff for residential properties).

LD KAMOLANE ACTING MUNICIPAL MANAGER

NGWATHE MUNICIPALITY

PUBLIC NOTICE CALLING FOR INSPECTION OF

2014 - 2018 VALUATION ROLL AND LODGING OF OBJECTIONS

Notice is hereby given, in terms of Section 49(1)(a)(i) of the Local Government Municipal Property Rates Act, of 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004) (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"), that the valuation roll for the financial years 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2018 is extended again for public inspection at the office of the Chief Financial Officer, Ground floor, Ngwathe Municipality, Liebenbergstrek, Parys and the municipal website: http://ngwathe.fs.gov.za, for the period 02 May 2014 to 30 June 2014, Mondays to Fridays during office hours i.e. 07:45 to 16:30. It is also available at the following areas;

	PARYS	HEILBRON	VREDEFORT	KOPPIES	EDENVILLE
MUNICIPAL OFFICES IN TOWN	Customer Care Office	Customer Care Office	Customer Care Office	Customer Care Office	Customer Care Office
MUNICIPAL OFFICES IN TOWNSHIP	Customer Care Office: Tumahole	Customer Care Office: Phiritona	Customer Care Office: Mokwallo	Customer Care Office: Kwakwatsi	Customer Care Office: Ngwathe
LIBRARY IN TOWN	Help desk: Parys Library	Help desk: Heilbron Library	Help desk: Vredefort Library	Help desk: Koppies Library	
LIBRARY IN THE TOWNSHIP	Help desk : Thutong and Schonkenville Library	Help desk : Phiritona and Sandersville Library	Help desk : Vredeshoop Library	Help desk : Kwakwatsi Library	

In terms of Section 49(1)(a)(ii) of the Act any owner of property, or other person who so desires, is hereby invited to lodge an objection with the Municipal Manager in respect of any matter reflected in, or omitted from, the valuation roll within the abovementioned period.

Your attention is specifically drawn to the fact that in terms of Section 50(2) of the Act an objection must be in relation to a specific individual property and not against the valuation roll as such.

Objection forms are obtainable at all Customer Care Offices upon payment of fee of R173 per objection against Valuation within legislated period which is refundable. The public is hereby notified that all Objections done against Valuation and after legislated period an amount of R512 for 2013/2014 is payable and non-refundable. Thereafter a new tariff for 2014/2015 will be applicable as determined by Council.

The completed form/s must be returned to:

Municipal Manager Ngwathe Local Municipality Valuation Roll P.O. Box 359 PARYS 9585

Alternatively the form/s can be handed in at any Customer Care Offices

For enquiries please contact the Chief Financial Officer or Revenue Manager during office hours on (056) 816 2700 or (056) 816 2744 or (056) 816 2742.

Municipal Manager Adv. T Mokoena

PROVINCIAL GAZETTE (Published every Friday)

All correspondence, advertisements, etc. must be addressed to the Officer in charge of the Provincial Gazette, P.O. Box 517, Bloemfontein, Tel.: (051) 403 3139. Free Voucher copies of the Provincial Gazette or cuttings of advertisements are NOT supplied.

Subscription Rates (payable in advance)

The subscription fee for the Provincial Gazette (including all Extraordinary Provincial Gazettes) are as follows:

SUBSCRIPTION: (POST)

PRICE PER COPY R 20.90
HALF-YEARLY R523.70
YEARLY R1 047.20

SUBSCRIPTION: (OVER THE COUNTER / E-MAIL)

PRICE PER COPY R 12.40 HALF-YEARLY R 310.00 YEARLY R 619.90

Stamps are not accepted

Closing time for acceptance of copy

All advertisements must reach the Officer in Charge of the Provincial Gazette **not later than 16:00, three workings days** prior to the publication of the Gazette. Advertisements received after that time will be held over for publication in the issue of the following week, or if desired by the advertiser, will be inserted in the current issue as a "Late Advertisement". In such case the advertisement must be delivered to the Officer in Charge **not later than 08:00 on the Tuesday** preceding the publication of the Gazette and double rate will be charged for that advertisement.

A "Late Advertisement" will not be inserted as such without definite instructions from the advertiser.

Advertisement Rates

Notices required by Law to be inserted in the Provincial Gazette: R29.50 per centimeter or portion thereof, single column.

Advertisement fees are payable in advance to the Officer in charge of the Provincial Gazette, P.O. Box 517, Bloemfontein, 9300, Tel.: (051) 403 3139.

NUMBERING OF PROVINCIAL GAZETTE

You are hereby informed that the numbering of the Provincial Gazette /Tender Bulletin and notice numbers will from 2010 coincide with the relevant financial year. In other words, the chronological numbering starting from one will commence on or after 1 April of every year.

Printed and published by the Free State Provincial Government

PROVINSIALE KOERANT (Verskyn elke Vrydag)

Alle korrespondensie, advertensies, ens. moet aan die Beampte Belas met die Provinsiale Koerant, Posbus 517, Bloemfontein, Tel.: No. (051) 403 3139 geadresseer word. Gratis eksemplare van die Provinsiale Koerant of uitknipsels van advertensies word NIE verskaf nie.

Intekengeld (vooruitbetaalbaar)

Die intekengeld vir die Provinsiale Koerant (insluitend alle Buitengewone Provinsiale Koerante) is soos volg:

INTEKENGELD: (POS)

PRYS PER EKSEMPLAAR R 20.90
HALFJAARLIKS R523.70
JAARLIKS R1 047.20

INTEKENGELD: (OOR DIE TOONBANK / E-POS)

PRYS PER EKSEMPLAAR R 12.40 HALFJAARLIKS R 310.00 JAARLIKS R 619.90

Seëls word nie aanvaar nie.

Sluitingstyd vir die Aanname van Kopie

Alle advertensies moet die Beampte Belas met die Provinsiale Koerant bereik nie later nie as 16:00 drie werksdae voordat die Koerant uitgegee word. Advertensies wat na daardie tyd ontvang word, word oorgehou vir publikasie in die uitgawe van die volgende week, of as die adverteerder dit verlang, sal dit in die Koerant wat op die pers is as 'n "Laat Advertensie" geplaas word. In sulke gevalle moet die advertensie aan die Beampte oorhandig word nie later nie as 08:00 op die Dinsdag voordat die Koerant gepubliseer word en dubbeltarief sal vir dié advertensie gevra word.

'n "Laat Advertensie" sal nie sonder definitiewe instruksies van die Adverteerder as sodanige geplaas word nie.

Advertensietariewe

Kennisgewings wat volgens Wet in die Provinsiale Koerant geplaas moet word: **R29.50** per sentimeter of deel daarvan, enkelkolom.

Advertensiegelde is vooruitbetaalbaar aan die Beampte belas met die Provinsiale Koerant, Posbus 517, Bloemfontein 9300, Tel.: (051) 403 3139.

NOMMERING VAN PROVINSIALE KOERANT

U word hiermee in kennis gestel dat die nommering van die Provinsiale Koerant / Tender Bulletin en kennisgewingnommers vanaf 2010 met die betrokke boekjaar sal ooreenstem. Met ander woorde, die kronologiese nommering beginnende met een, sal op of na 1 April van elke jaar begin.

Gedruk en uitgegee deur die Vrystaatse Provinsiale Regering